

# BOARD OF DIRECTORS OCTOBER 4, 2017 CONTRACTS SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

ITEM #E7 BANKING SERVICES

ITEM #E8 SHELTER ADVERTISING PANEL ITEM #F3 REPLACEMENT BUS WINDOWS



# **CONTRACT AGREEMENT**

# between

CONTRACTOR	) CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 445 South Figueroa Street, 8 <sup>th</sup> Floor Mail Code: G08-274	) CONTRACT NO. FIN18-01
Los Angeles, CA 90071	) ) <u>BANKING SERVICES</u> )
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR") Eileen Perez, VP & Relationship Manager Telephone: 213-236-7589 Email: Eileen.perez@unionbank.com	, ) ) ) ) )
And	) Contract Amount: \$88,500
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")	) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
	<i>)</i> }



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	4
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	4
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	5
4.	COMPENSATION	5
5.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT	5
6.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	6
7.	NOTIFICATION	6
8.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	7
9.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	8
10.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	8
11.	ASSIGNMENT	9
12.	SUBCONTRACTING	9
13.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	10
14.	INSURANCE	10
15.	INDEMNITY	13
16.	REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK	13
17.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA	13
18.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	14
19.	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS	14
20.	WORK FOR HIRE	14

21.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	15
22.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	15
23.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	15
24.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	15
25.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	15
26.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	16
27.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	17
28.	FORCE MAJEURE	17
29.	CONFIDENTIALITY	17
30.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	17
31.	GOVERNING LAW	18
32.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	18
33.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	18
34.	PRECEDENCE	19
35.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	19
ATTAC	HMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK	
ATTAC	HMENT B – PRICING	
ATTAC	HMENT C - CONTRACT FOR DEPOSIT OF MONEYS	
ATTAC	HMENT D – AUTHORIZATION AND AGREEMENT FOR TREASURY  MANAGEMENT SERVICES	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this 10th day of October, 2017, and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

#### **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Attachment A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

#### 1. SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces or forces of another contractor or entity. CONTRACTOR will cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff or other contractor.

# 2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through September 30, 2022, unless terminated as specified in Section 10 and 11 of this Agreement. Omnitrans has no obligation to purchase any specified amount of products/services. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement.

# 3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
  - Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
  - 2) Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

# 4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a FIXED PRICE basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment B, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed Eighty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$88,500), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, insurance, and profit.

# 5. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice OMNITRANS on a monthly basis no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of each month. CONTRACTOR shall furnish information as may be requested by OMNITRANS to substantiate the validity of an invoice.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Accounts Payable

# Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

A separate invoice shall be used for each shipment. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:

- Contract number
- Invoice number
- Description of delivery
- Delivery Date
- Total quantity delivered
- Information as requested by OMNITRANS
- B. OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

#### 6. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

Upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours, MUFG Union Bank, N.A. can allow inspection of records in accordance with our corporate record retention and privacy policies. The Bank will maintain records in the ordinary course of business.

# 7. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To OMNITRANS:

To CONTRACTOR:

Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Christine Van Matre Contract Administrator MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 445 South Figueroa Street, 8<sup>th</sup> Floor Mail Code: G08-274 Los Angeles, CA 90071 Attn: Eileen Perez Vice President & Relationship Manager

# 8. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

# A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Donald Walker, Director of Finance.

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
  - 1. Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
  - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed to OMNITRANS' satisfaction.
  - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

# B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

Name Role

Eileen Perez Michael Brody

Relationship Manager Sr. Treasury Associate - AVP MUFG Union Bank, N.A. will assign the key personnel, as noted in the RFP response to the Omnitrans' relationship and will consult and work closely with Omnitrans with respect to any transition of such key personnel. Omnitrans can request specific action regarding personnel decisions, however the Bank reserves the right to make key personnel decisions without the consent of our clients.

OMNITRANS awarded this Agreement to CONTRACTOR based on OMNITRANS' confidence and reliance on the expertise of CONTRACTOR's key personnel described above. CONTRACTOR shall not reassign key personnel or assign other personnel to key personnel roles until CONTRACTOR obtains prior written approval from OMNITRANS.

# 9. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed, but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services. Force Majeure shall apply.

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. also reserves reasonable termination rights. In addition, upon termination, the Bank can return any non-intellectually protected documents to Omnitrans. This would be documentation that the Bank is not required to maintain for regulatory compliance or record retention reasons. The Bank must be paid for services rendered prior to termination.

# 10. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within the time permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for

the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.

- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 28, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated. In the event Omnitrans terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, it will provide the Contractor with a 30-day notice.
- E. Upon termination, the Bank can return any non-intellectually protected documents to Omnitrans. This would be documentation that the Bank is not required to maintain for regulatory compliance or record retention reasons.
- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 10, Termination for Convenience.
- G. The rights and remedies of OMNITRANS provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

# 11. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

# 12. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. The Bank agrees to be responsible for all acts and omissions of our subcontractors and will pay their subcontractors directly. The Bank reserves the right to add additional subcontractors (if applicable) in the future. N/A

# 13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters to the extend applicable to the Bank.

#### 14. INSURANCE

# A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

# 1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below:
- b. Provide Omnitrans with the link below to the Memorandum of Insurance containing a blanket additional insured endorsement:

https://online.marsh.com/marshconnectpublic/marsh2/public/moi?client=433305859

# 2) Other Insurance Provisions

# a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name Omnitrans, its officers, officials,

employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

- For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.
- 2. Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

# b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

# c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

# 3) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VII.** 

# 4) Verification of Coverage

A link to the electronic Memorandum of Insurance, containing a blanket additional insured endorsement is provided below:

https://online.marsh.com/marshconnectpublic/marsh2/public/moi?client =433305859

# 5) Subcontractors

A link to the electronic Memorandum of Insurance, containing a blanket additional insured endorsement is provided below:

https://online.marsh.com/marshconnectpublic/marsh2/public/moi?client =433305859

# 6) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

# B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

1)	Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed for the Commercial General Liability via a blanket additional insured endorsement.
2)	Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed for the Automobile Liability via a blanket additional insured endorsement.
3)	☐ Errors and Omissions Liability: \$1,000,000; combined single limit bodily and property damage liability per occurrence and \$3,000,000 aggregate or,
4)	Professional Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate.
5)	
6)	☐ Self Insurance Program: a State Approved program in an amount and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California.
7)	Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence.
8)	☐ Environmental Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.

- 9) Umbrella Policy: \$4,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate Additional coverage for the above policies, *Omnitrans Additional Insured*.
   10) All drivers making deliveries of products specified on this
- 10) All drivers making deliveries of products specified on this solicitation shall have Hazardous Materials Endorsements on their Commercial Drivers License, and such other Endorsements as may be required by relevant laws and/or regulations.

# 15. INDEMNITY

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) ("Losses and Liabilities") arising from or connected with any alleged negligent act and/or omission of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers arising out of the performance of this Agreement, except to the extent such Losses and Liabilities arise from the negligent acts and/or omissions of the Indemnified Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bank's obligations of indemnity under this Agreement shall be limited to an aggregate amount not to exceed \$TBD\_\_\_\_\_. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

#### 16. REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

# 17. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA

Contractor will provide standard reports and data in connection with banking services. To the extent any such reports and data are prepared specifically for Omnitrans ("Omintrans Data"), Contractor agrees that it will not release any such Omintrans Data to any other person or entity except to the extent that it is required to do so by any binding rule, regulation or law (or as required by any bank examiner having jurisdiction over Contractor) or as necessary to provide the services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will retain all ownership rights for standard reports, data and related rights to its intellectual property (including but not limited to systems, software and hardware regardless of location or date of development) used or developed in connection with the services. In addition,

Contractor will maintain the confidentiality of information received and/or developed in connection with this Agreement.

# 18. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

Contractor will provide standard reports and data in connection with banking services. To the extent any such reports and data are prepared specifically for Omnitrans ("Omintrans Data"), Contractor agrees that it will not release any such Omintrans Data to any other person or entity except to the extent that it is required to do so by any binding rule, regulation or law (or as required by any bank examiner having jurisdiction over Contractor) or as necessary to provide the services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will retain all ownership rights for standard reports, data and related rights to its intellectual property (including but not limited to systems, software and hardware regardless of location or date of development) used or developed in connection with the services. In addition, Contractor will maintain the confidentiality of information received and/or developed in connection with this Agreement.

# 19. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

Contractor will provide standard reports and data in connection with banking services. To the extent any such reports and data are prepared specifically for Omnitrans ("Omintrans Data"), Contractor agrees that it will not release any such Omintrans Data to any other person or entity except to the extent that it is required to do so by any binding rule, regulation or law (or as required by any bank examiner having jurisdiction over Contractor) or as necessary to provide the services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will retain all ownership rights for standard reports, data and related rights to its intellectual property (including but not limited to systems, software and hardware regardless of location or date of development) used or developed in connection with the services. In addition, Contractor will maintain the confidentiality of information received and/or developed in connection with this Agreement.

# 20. WORK FOR HIRE

Contractor will provide standard reports and data in connection with banking services. To the extent any such reports and data are prepared specifically for Omnitrans ("Omintrans Data"), Contractor agrees that it will not release any such Omintrans Data to any other person or entity except to the extent that it is required to do so by any binding rule, regulation or law (or as required by any bank examiner having jurisdiction over Contractor) or as necessary to provide the services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will retain all ownership rights for standard reports, data and related rights to its intellectual property (including but not limited to systems, software and hardware regardless of location or date of development) used or developed in connection with the services. In addition, Contractor will maintain the confidentiality of information received and/or developed in connection with this Agreement.

# 21. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of learning of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim. The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

# 22. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

#### 23. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise the professional care and competence required of other similarly situated financial institutions in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

# 24. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

#### 25. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

A. CONTRACTOR will comply with all Federal, State, and local rules, regulations, laws and ordinances applicable to it in the performance of the Services under the Agreement.

B. Government regulations that directly affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this contract and unforeseen impacts, which neither party could have contemplated at the onset of the contract and have an unconscionable impact on the CONTRACTOR may be given special pricing consideration. The parties, in good faith, shall review established rates and may adopt any mutually agreed new rates, which shall only be effective as agreed upon by the parties. Thorough documentation including all cost elements is required to support the Contractor's claim to any relief under this clause.

# 26. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

- A. MUFG Union Bank, N.A. will provide standard reports and data in connection with banking services. However, as a banking services provider, we will obtain all ownership rights for standard reports, data and related rights to our intellectual property (including but not limited to systems, software and hardware regardless of location or date of development) used or developed in connection with banking services. In addition, the Bank will maintain the confidentiality of information received and/or developed in connection with this Agreement. The Bank has the right to disclose such information as required by any rule, regulation or law binding on the Bank (or to a bank examiner having jurisdiction over the Bank) and as required to provide the services.
- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret, confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

# 27. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

# 28. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, riots, or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

# 29. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

Information in the public domain is not confidential and it is permissible to disclose confidential information when required by binding, rule, law, regulation or as required by any bank examiner. It is also permissible to disclose confidential information to representatives who have a need to know in order to execute and perform services.

# 30. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

# The following apply to this Agreement only:

A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and

- that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

# 31. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, as well as Federal laws, rules and regulations to the extent applicable.

# 32. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

# 33. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has all necessary licenses and Α. permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, and the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, FIRM warrants that its employees, agents, and contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. CONTRACTOR shall notify OMNITRANS immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.

- B. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses; pay all charges, assessments and fees, as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.
- C. The CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain all applicable licenses and permits required to perform contracted services. Should CONTRACTOR be made aware of any missing licenses or permits, CONTRACTOR will immediately rectify the issue.

# 34. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of RFP-FIN18-01 and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) CONTRACTOR's proposal dated May 16, 2017 and Best & Final Offer dated September 15, 2017.

# 35. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties here executed on the date shown below, and effect	
OMNITRANS	MUFG Union Bank, N.A.
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Eileen Perez Vice President & Relationship Manager
Date	Date
Federal Tax	(I.D. No. <u>94-0304228</u>

IDP\_\_\_\_

# ATTACHMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK FIN18-01 BANKING AND MERCHANT SERVICES

#### 1. BACKGROUND

Banking Services include online services, lines of credit, tax deposit services, deposits, stop payments, and many other general banking services. The combined capital and operating budget for Omnitrans' Fiscal Year 2017 is \$94.4 million dollars.

# 2. REQUIRED BANKING CAPABILITIES

#### A. Online Services

# 1) Wire Transfer Services

Incoming and outgoing. The majority of these transactions are with the Federal government and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) as well as with San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (SBCTA), vendors and agencies that contract with Omnitrans to administer their grants.

- 2) One-hundred percent online safety guarantee.
- 3) Schedule payments and transfer funds between accounts instantly.
- 4) Receive account activity alerts via text message or email.
- 5) Guarantee accurate and timely execution of online transactions.

# **B.** Tax Deposit Service

Provide electronic tax payments as required.

# C. Deposits

- 1) Provide same day credit on remote deposit services for checks (include hardware, software and training).
- 2) Provide same day credit on deposits hand-delivered to any branch office.
- Return a duplicate of all deposit slips to Omnitrans at the counter, via regular mail or electronically, indicating receipt of deposit.
- 4) Accommodate deposits consisting of checks and deposit slips separately from those consisting of cash and deposit slips.
- 5) Receive loose coin bagged in standard amounts and non-standard amounts.

#### D. Returned Checks

- 1) Present checks returned for uncollected funds and or insufficient funds twice before charging Omnitrans' account.
- 2) Electronically notify Omnitrans daily of any returned items.

# E. Bank Collections

1) Process returned checks as collection items, as required.

2) Provide an endorsement guarantee designee when Omnitrans presents a returned check for collection for payment that day at the drawee's bank.

# F. Account Analysis

- 1) Provide a monthly account analysis for each account.
- 2) Indicate in writing how earnings are calculated and credited to the account.

# G. Bank Statements

- 1) Provide monthly statements for the period starting at the first of the month and ending at the last working day of the month, or as otherwise required by Omnitrans.
- 2) Include copies of any debit or credit memos in the statement.

# H. Adjustment Notification

Notify Omnitrans of any debit or credit adjustment, by the following business day.

# I. Stop Payments

Provide stop payments upon an Omnitrans designee's notification by telephone or electronically and followed up by a written direction with the required signature(s) from Omnitrans.

# J. Payment of Charges

All charges are to be debited to Omnitrans' account.

# K. Payroll Direct Deposit

- 1) Biweekly processing
- 2) Payment card programs for employees

# L. Other Chargeable Services

# 1) Account Maintenance

Monthly fixed charge associated with the maintenance of a demand deposit account (DDA) including a monthly statement.

# 2) ACH (Automated Clearing House) Debit/Credit

Charge for the origination of a transaction, using the ACH that results in a debit or credit at the receiving bank.

# 3) **ACH Debit/Credit—On-us**

Charge for origination of a transaction that does not go through the ACH, resulting in a debit or credit to account maintenance by the Originating Depository Financial Institution (ODFI).

# 4) **ACH Debit—Reclear**

Resubmission of a previously originated ACH debit returned due to insufficient funds.

# 5) **ACH PC Handling**

Charge for transferring direct deposit information electronically.

# 6) Automated Clearinghouse/Monthly Maintenance

Fixed monthly charge related to movement of funds utilizing the ACH network.

# 7) **Balance Reporting**

Charge for balance reporting detail account maintenance.

# 8) Cash Deposited/\$1M—Branch

Currency deposited in a branch for processing and verification.

# 9) Cash Vault Deposit Adjustment

Adjustment made to customer account when verified amount does not equal the declared deposit amount.

# 10) Cash Vault Deposit Ticket

Deposit ticket charge for a cash-only deposit.

# 11) Check Deposited—Local

Per item charge for checks deposited at a branch, drawn on financial institutions located in the same Federal Reserve branch as the service bank (including On-Us, Clearinghouse and Local RCPC).

# 12) Check Deposited—Non-Local

Per item charge for checks deposited in a branch, drawn on financial institutions located outside the Federal Reserve branch of the service bank.

# 13) Check Paid Report—Original

Bank Statement

#### 14) Checks Cashed

Charge for cashing checks drawn on another bank.

# 15) Checks Deposited—Affiliate City

Per item charge for deposited checks drawn on financial institutions located in the same Federal Reserve city.

# 16) Coin Deposited/Rolls—Branch

Rolled coin deposited in a branch for processing and verification.

# 17) Coins Deposited/Nonstandard Bag

Either one denomination of coin deposited in a nonstandard amount or a coin bag deposited with mixed denominations.

# 18) Coins Deposited/Standard Bag

One denomination of coin deposited in the standard Federal amount.

# 19) Collected Overdraft

Charge for negative collected balances.

# 20) Commercial Paper--Repo Charges

Charges for processing commercial paper repurchase agreements.

# 21) Currency Deposited Nonstandard

Deposit made either in a nonstandard bag or multiple deposits per bag.

# 22) Currency Deposited Standard

Currency deposited in standard straps of 100 bills of one denomination.

# 23) **Debit Posting**

Charge associated with the posting of a debit to a demand deposit account.

#### 24) **Deposit—Branch**

Per deposit charge for handling and posting a deposit of checks or cash presented to a branch.

# 25) **Deposit—Operations Center**

Per deposit charge for handling and posting a deposit of checks presented directly to operations center.

#### **Endorsement Guarantee**

# 27) FDIC Assessment per 1000

Charge that represents cost for insuring demand deposits with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

# 28) Internal Transfer

Charges for Omnitrans' initiated transfers from one Omnitrans account to another.

# 29) Local Clearing House

Per item charge for deposited checks drawn on financial institutions that are members of the same clearinghouse arrangement as the service bank.

#### 30) **Local FED**

Per item charge for checks drawn on financial institutions located in the same Federal Reserve branch as the service bank (other than On-us or local clearinghouse items).

# 31) Overdraft/NSF Item

Charge for processing of transactions paying against insufficient funds.

# 32) Partial Account Reconciliation/Item

Charge assessed for each paid item in a partial reconciliation program.

# 33) Redeposits

Checks returned unpaid due to insufficient or uncollected funds that are represented for payment at Omnitrans' request.

# 34) **Return Items**

Deposited checks that are returned unpaid. Reasons may include stop payment, non-sufficient funds, account closed or refer-to-maker.

# 35) Safekeeping Services

Charges for safekeeping securities.

# 36) **Stop Payment**

Charge for issuing an order to stop or not allow an item to be posted to an account.

# 37) **Telephone Transfer**

Charges for bank initiated transfers from one Omnitrans account to another.

# 38) **ZBA Master Account Maintenance**

Monthly fixed charge associated with the maintenance of the master account in a zero balance account relationship.

#### 39) **ZBA Subaccount Maintenance**

Monthly fixed charge associated with the maintenance of the subsidiary account in a zero balance account relationship.

# 3. INVESTMENT SERVICES (LAIF)

- A. Use required government protocol in handling all investment transactions.
- B. Must be able to perform Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) transfers including but not limited to:
  - 1) Manage LAIF deposits, withdrawals and transfers:
    - a) Receive phone, fax or electronic requests from Omnitrans for deposits, withdrawals and transfers.
    - b) Make all deposits and withdrawals effective the same business day and the ability to set up future deposits and withdrawals in advance.
- C. Advise Omnitrans of trends and opportunities regarding LAIF and other investments.

# 4. OTHER REQUIREMENTS

- A. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured depository.
- B. Guarantee collateralization of public funds in accordance with California law.

# 5. CONTACT PERSONNEL

- A. Designate at least one bank officer and at least one other bank employee, to act as liaison with Omnitrans. Any changes in personnel shall be communicated, in writing, prior to any substitution of contact personnel.
- B. The designee(s) must be able to accurately and expediently process payroll transfers and/or corrections necessary for Omnitrans.
- C. Omnitrans will designate its representatives, in writing, after selection of Awardee. Any changes in personnel shall be communicated, in writing, prior to substitution of contact personnel.

# 6. SECURITY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- A. Omnitrans contracts with a security transportation service that transports revenues from the East Valley and West Valley facilities to the respective bank's cash vault for deposit in Omnitrans' bank accounts.
- B. Revenues consist of:
  - 1) Verified checks; and
  - 2) Currency and coin (Federal Reserve Standard and Non-standard bags).

\*End Scope of Work\*

# ATTACHMENT B - PRICING FIN18-01 BANKING SERVICES

Α -	and Desition	Unit Price
Acc	count Position	0.45
	Earnings Credit Rate (Percentage)	0.45
Λος	Pount Analysis	
ACC	Acct Maintenance - Web	3
	Acci Maintenance - Web	3
Acc	count Reconciliation	
ACC	Full Recon Monthly Maint	35
	Transmission Issue Input-Base	3
	Transmission Issue Input-Item	0.025
	Record Maintenance - Per Issue	1.5
	Check Paid Truncated	0.035
	Daily Paid Report	0
	Outstanding Only report	8
	Outstanding Check Registr-Item	0
	Stale Date Feature - Base	10
	Transmission Output - Per Tx	3
	Transmission output - Per Item	0.025
	Web Pos Pay - Account Base	0
	Web Pos Pay - Exceptions	0.1
	Web Pos Pay - Images	0.3
	Web Pos Pay - Manual Issue	0.15
	Payee Name Validation	0.025
	Payee Exception Processing	1.75
Bus	siness Checking	
	Electronic Credit	0.05
	Electronic Debit	0.05
	Bank Statement Web	1
	Deposit Admin Fee	0.125
ACI	H Services	
	Direct Send Monthly Base Fee	20
	Direct Send Credit Transaction	0.035
	Input - Data Transmission	5.000
	Addenda Records	0.05
	- Indiana Hoodido	0.00
Cas	sh Vault Services	
Juc	Currency Deposited - Strapped - per	
	\$1,000	0.00075
	T. 1, T. 2	3.00070
	Coin Deposited Non-Standard - per bag	4
	Coin Deposited - Std Bag - per bag	0.65
	Deposit - Cash or Coin Only - per	0.00
	deposit - Cash of Cont Only - per	1
	Currency Deposited - unstrapped - per	<u> </u>
	\$1000	0.0009
		0.0009
	Deposit Adjustment	

	Unit Price
Electronic Payment Authorization	
EPA Monthly Maintenance	15
Electronic Tax Deposit	
Web Instatax Montly Maint	5
	5
Web Instatax Payment	1.5
Image Check	
Remote Deposit Monthly Maint	75
Remote Deposit on Us	0.08
Remote Deposit Per Transit	0.08
Remote Deposit Per Deposit	0.75
Check Image	
IOD Monthly Maintenance Fee	5
IOD Per Item Fee	0
Information Poporting	
Information Reporting	00
Web Prior Day Report Acounts	20
Web Prior Day Report Accounts	20
Web PD Bal/Sum Updated	0.04
Web PD Transactions Updated	0.04
Onling Business Center	
Issue Password - Bank	0
Issue i assword - Darik	
Deposited Items Returned	
Web RI - Monthly Maintenance	5
Teleservices	
Inquiry & Transfer Service	0
Electronic Wire Transfer	
Acct Transfer End-of-Day/Web	2.5
Wire Transfer Monthly Fee/Web	15
Internal Transfer Intraday/Web	5
Outgoing Domestic Wire/Web	5
Zero Balance Accounts	
Out and the state of the state	
Concentration Account	35
Sub Level 1	8
Services Provided - Fees Waived	
Customer Service Activities	
Non-Customer Cash Paid On Us	n

- 1 Loyalty allowance of \$5,000 shall be applied to analysis and can be used for up to 6 months from contract date
- 2 Transactional pricing of the proposal will remain fixed as stated herein and the Account Position/Earnings Credit Rate (%) is currently set at 0.45%. This ECR rate of 0.45% is a Government managed rate which is reviewed quarterly and subject to change. The ECR rate is based on market conditions and can increase or decrease. However, we will honor the flat floor rate of 0.45% on the contract and the ECR rate if subject to change, will only increase and not decrease.

BANK FILE NUMBER	TREASURER FILE NUMBER	
AGENT OF BANK FILE NUMBER	AUDITOR NUMBER	

# CONTRACT FOR DEPOSIT OF MONEYS

THIS CONTRACT, relati	ng to the deposit of mor	neys, is made as of the	day of	<u>, year</u>	, between <u>Type</u>
Contract Signers name her	re ("Treasurer"), acting	in his or her official capa	city as Type	Title Here o	f <u>Type</u>
Depositor Here ("De	positor"), and MUFG L	Jnion Bank, N.A. ("Bank	"), as depository	and having a share	holder's equity of
on <u>Select Month</u>	, Day, year				

The Treasurer proposes to deposit in the Bank from time to time moneys in his or her custody in an aggregate amount on deposit at any one time not to exceed the total shareholder's equity of the Bank and said moneys will be deposited subject to Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 (commencing with Section 53630) of the Government Code of the State of California.

The Government Code requires the Treasurer to enter into a contract setting forth the conditions upon which said moneys are deposited with the Bank.

In the judgment of the Treasurer, this contract is to the public advantage.

The parties agree as follows:

- 1. This contract cancels and supersedes any previous contracts between the Treasurer and the Bank relating to the method of collateralization of Depositor's deposits.
- 2. This contract, but not deposits then held hereunder, is subject to termination by the Treasurer or the Bank at any time upon 30 days' written notice. Deposits may be withdrawn in accordance with the agreement of the parties and applicable federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. This contract is subject to modification or termination upon enactment of any statute, rule, or regulation, state or federal, which, in the opinion of the Administrator of Local Agency Security of the State of California (the "Administrator"), is inconsistent herewith, including any change relative to the payment of interest upon moneys so deposited by the Treasurer. Upon notice to the Treasurer from the Administrator that the Bank failed to pay assessments, fines or penalties assessed by the Administrator, the Treasurer may withdraw Depositor's deposits from the Bank. Upon notice to the Treasurer from the Administrator that the Bank failed to pay fines or penalties assessed by the Administrator, the Treasurer may immediately withdraw authorization for the placement of pooled securities with the Agent of the Bank.
- 3. Interest shall accrue on any moneys so deposited as permitted by any act of the Congress of the United States or by any rule or regulation of any department or agency of the federal government. If interest may legally be paid on the account into which the moneys are deposited, then all moneys deposited shall bear interest at a rate agreed upon by the Treasurer and the Bank.
- 4. The Bank shall issue to the Treasurer for each inactive deposit a receipt or other evidence of deposit on a form agreed to by the Bank and the Treasurer, stating, when required, the interest to be paid, if any, the duration of the deposit, the frequency of interest payments, if any, and the terms of withdrawal. Each such form is by reference made a part of this contract.

- 5. The Bank will maintain at all times with the Agent of the Bank as security for Depositor's deposits (a) eligible securities of the classes described in Government Code Section 53651, except subdivisions (m) and (p), having a market value at least 10% in excess of the total amount of deposits secured by those securities, (b) eligible securities of the class described in subdivision (m) of Government Code Section 53651 having a market value at least 50% in excess of the total amount of deposits secured by those securities and (c) eligible securities of the class described in subdivision (p) of Government Code Section 53651 having a market value of at least 5% in excess of the total amount of deposits secured by those securities. If the Administrator determines that a security is not qualified to secure public deposits, the Bank will substitute other securities to comply with the requirements of this paragraph.
- 6. Eligible securities are those listed in Government Code Section 53651.
- 7. The Treasurer hereby waives security for that portion of the total amount on deposit which is insured pursuant to federal law.
- 8. The Agent of the Bank, which the Treasurer and the Bank hereby authorize to hold the eligible securities posted as collateral under this

contract, is the Trust Department of the Bank. The Agent of the Bank has filed with the Administrator an agreement to comply in all respects with all provisions of the Local Agency Deposit Security Law as set forth in the Government Code and Local Agency Deposit Security Regulations.

9. Authority for placement of securities for safekeeping in accordance with Government Code Section 53659 is hereby granted to the Agent of the Bank, including placement with any Federal Reserve Banks or branches thereof, and the following banks or trust companies, other than the Bank:

Depository Trust Company, New York, New York;

- 10. If the Bank fails to pay all of any moneys on deposit of the Depositor which are subject to this contract when ordered to do so in accordance with the terms of withdrawal set forth on the deposit receipt (which is by reference made a part hereof), the Treasurer will immediately notify, in writing, the Administrator. Action of the Administrator in converting the collateral required by paragraph 5 above for the benefit of the Depositor is governed by Government Code Section 53665.
- 11. The Bank may add, substitute or withdraw eligible securities being used as security for deposits made hereunder in accordance with Government Code Section 53654, provided the requirements of paragraph 5 above are met. The Bank shall not interchange classes of security (as defined in Government Code Section 53632.5) without the prior written approval of the Treasurer.
- 12. The Bank shall have and hereby reserves the right to collect the interest on the securities except in cases where the securities are liable to sale or are sold or converted in accordance with the provision of Government Code Section 53665.
- 13. The Bank will pay all expenses incurred in transporting eligible securities maintained as collateral for moneys on deposit to and from the Agent of the Bank. The Depositor will pay (or promptly reimburse

- the Bank for or otherwise compensate the Bank for) all expenses incurred in transporting all moneys deposited with the Bank to and from the Treasurer's office. The Depositor will pay the Bank (or otherwise compensate the Bank for) the fees and charges stated in the Bank's then current Schedule of Fees (unless the Bank and the Treasurer otherwise agree) for handling, collecting and paying all checks, drafts and other exchange or securities according to the Bank's normal practices.
- 14. This contract, the parties hereto, and all deposits governed by this contract shall be subject in all respects to Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 (commencing with Section 53630) of the Government Code of the State of California, and of all other state and federal laws, statutes, rules and regulations applicable to such deposits, whether now in force or hereafter enacted or promulgated, all of which are by this reference made a part hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Treasurer in his or her official capacity has signed this contract in quadruplicate and the Bank has caused this contract to be executed in like number by its duly authorized officer.

1. (NAME OF LOCAL AGENCY)	MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.
Ву:	Ву:
Name:	Name:
Title:	Title:



# AUTHORIZATION AND AGREEMENT FOR TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Each of the undersigned is an officer, owner, principal or other authorized individual of the business organization named below (Company). Company has received Union Bank's All About Treasury Management Services disclosure and agreement (Agreement) and agrees to be bound by the Agreement, as amended from time to time, any applicable user documentation, set-up forms and related documents, and other disclosures provided to Company with regard to the provision of one or more Treasury Management Services by Union Bank (Bank).

Company may from time to time request any of the Services described in the Agreement. Company may begin to use any such Service, subject to the Bank's approval, once the Bank has received from Company all required and properly executed forms and Company has successfully completed any testing or training requirements.

Each of the undersigned warrants that Company has taken all action required by its organizational or constituent documents to authorize each of the undersigned to execute and deliver on behalf of Company this Authorization and Agreement and any other documents the Bank may require with respect to a Service. Company agrees that each Contracting Officer signing below is authorized to enter into agreements for Treasury Management Services with Bank and to designate from time to time who is authorized to use the Services and give instructions on behalf of Company with respect to the Services.

NAME OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION		Dated				
Contracting Officers:						
Type or Print Name		Type or Print Name				
Signature		Signature		M= .		
Title		Title	-			
Note: If the company specified aborder below must sign this form; if the proprietorship, then all general part documents specify otherwise. Attack	e company is a partnership, iners. all members or the propi	limited liability cor rietor must sign this	nnanv. limite	d liability	partnership	or sole
AUTHORIZATION AND A						
The undersigned certifies that each form, and further certifies that the certification until written notice of its	undersigned has full authority	to execute this certif	gnature of a lication. The l	person au Bank is ei	thorized to entitled to rely	execute this y upon this
Dated		Signature				
		Type or Print Name				
		Title				
Note: If the Company specified about partnership, limited liability compa certification. Sole proprietors do not	ny or limited liability partners	ship, one of the ge	secretary mu neral partner	ıst sign th s or men	is certification nbers must	on; if it is a sign this
CUSTOMER ADDRESS						
STREET ADDRESS	CITY			STATE	ZIP CODE	
TELEPHONE NUMBER (Include area code)	FAX NUMBER (Include area code)					
<u></u>						



# **CONTRACT AGREEMENT**

# between

CONTRACTOR	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
Discount Glass & Mirror, Inc.  9555 Distribution Ave #100 San Diego, CA 92121	) CONTRACT NO. MKP18-37
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR") Telephone: Email:	SHELTER ADVERTISING PANEL  GLASS
And	) Contract Amount: \$42,120.00 ) ) ) ) ) )
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")	) Omnitrans Project Manager: ) Name: Melvin Cabang ) Title: Stops & Stations Supervisor ) Telephone: (909) 379-7153 ) Email: melvin.cabang@omnitrans.org ) ) Contract Administrator: ) Name: Krystal N. Turner ) Title: Contract Administrator ) Telephone: (909) 379-7202 ) Email: krystal.turner@omnitrans.org ) ) ) )



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	4
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	4
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	5
4.	COMPENSATION	5
5.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT	6
6.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	7
7.	NOTIFICATION	7
8.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	8
9.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	9
10.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	10
11.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	10
12.	ASSIGNMENT	11
13.	SUBCONTRACTING	11
14.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	12
15.	INSURANCE	12
16.	INDEMNITY	15
17.	REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK	15
18.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA	16
19.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	16
20.	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS	16

21.	WORK FOR HIRE	17
22.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	17
23.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	17
24.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	18
25.	NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES	18
26.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	18
27.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	19
28.	COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES	19
29.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	19
30.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	20
31.	FORCE MAJEURE	20
32.	CONFIDENTIALITY	20
33.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	21
34.	GOVERNING LAW	21
35.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	21
36.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	21
37.	PRECEDENCE	22
38.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	22
ATTAC	HMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK	
ATTAC	HMENT B – PRICING	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this <u>19th</u> day of <u>November, 2017</u>, by and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and <u>Discount Glass & Mirror, Inc.</u> (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

# **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Attachment A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

# 1. SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces or forces of another contractor or entity. CONTRACTOR will cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff or other contractor or entity that may be providing similar or the same Work for OMNITRANS.

# 2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through <u>November 18, 2020</u>, unless terminated as specified in Section 10 and 11 of this Agreement. Omnitrans has no obligation to purchase any specified amount of products/services. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement. The "maximum term" of this Agreement shall be the period extended from November 19, 2020 through November 18, 2022, which period encompasses the Initial Term and the Option Year One and Option Year Two.

# 3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
  - Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
  - Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

# 4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a FIXED PRICE basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment C, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed <u>Forty Two Thousand</u>, <u>One Hundred and Twenty</u> Dollars (\$42,120), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, insurance, and profit.

## 5. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice OMNITRANS on a monthly basis no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of each month. CONTRACTOR shall furnish information as may be requested by OMNITRANS to substantiate the validity of an invoice.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Accounts Payable

Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

A separate invoice shall be used for each shipment. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:

- Contract number
- Invoice number
- Description of delivery
- Delivery Date
- Total quantity delivered
- Information as requested by OMNITRANS
- B. OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

## C. TITLE

- a. Title shall pass to Omnitrans at the time of payment.
- b. The title transferred as above shall in each case be good, and free and clear from any and all security interests, liens, and/or other encumbrances.
- c. The transfer of title as specified above shall not imply Acceptance by Omnitrans, nor relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for strict compliance with the Contract, including warranty as specified in the Article entitled Warranty of Work, and for any loss of or damage to the Work.
- d. The Contractor at its own expense shall promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Omnitrans proper bills of sale or other written instruments of title in a form as required by Omnitrans; said instruments shall convey to the Omnitrans' title free and clear of debts, claims, liens, mortgages, taxes, and/or encumbrances.
- e. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss of or damage to Work purchased hereunder until they are delivered, unloaded, and received by Omnitrans at the FOB Destination specified herein. Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence, shall cease when title passes to Omnitrans.

#### 6. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

CONTRACTOR agrees that OMNITRANS or any duly authorized representative shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, time cards, employment records or other records relating to this Agreement. Such material, including all pertinent cost, accounting, financial records, and proprietary data must be kept and maintained by CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after completion of this Agreement unless OMNITRANS' written permission is given to CONTRACTOR to dispose of material prior to this time.

#### 7. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

## To OMNITRANS:

#### To CONTRACTOR:

Omnitrans

1700 West Fifth Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411
Attn: Krystal N. Turner
Title: Contract Administrator

Discount Glass & Mirror, Inc.

9555 Distribution Drive #100
San Diego, CA 92121
ATTN: Doris Cardenas
Title: Office Manager

OMMITTO A MOLANDI GONITO A OTODIO DEDDECA MANUELLO

# 8. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

# A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Melvin Cabang, Stops & Stations Supervisor.

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
  - 1. Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
  - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed to OMNITRANS' satisfaction.
  - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

## B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

<u>Name</u>	<u>Role</u>
Doris Cardenas	Project Manager
Noemi Portilla	Project Coordinator
Kathy Young	Accounting
Anthony Bortz	President

Any propose/substitution or replacement by Contractor of Contractor's key personnel shall ensure that such person possesses the same or better expertise and experience than the key personnel being substituted or replaced. Omnitrans reserves the right to interview such person to ascertain and verify if such proposed substitution or replacement does in deed possess such expertise and experience.

OMNITRANS awarded this Agreement to CONTRACTOR based on OMNITRANS' confidence and reliance on the expertise of CONTRACTOR's key personnel described above. CONTRACTOR shall not reassign key personnel or assign other personnel to key personnel roles until CONTRACTOR obtains prior written approval from OMNITRANS.

#### 9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any disputes between the successful CONTRACTOR and OMNITRANS relating to the implementation or administration of the Contract shall be resolved in accordance with this section.

- A. The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in meetings or communications between proposer and OMNITRANS.
- B. If the dispute remains unresolved fifteen (15) days after it first arises, proposer may request that Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall issue the recommended decision in writing and provide a copy to proposer.
- C. If the dispute remains unresolved after review by Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager, either party may seek judicial resolution of the dispute in an appropriate Court of the State of California.

D. Pending final resolution of a dispute under this section, proposer shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Contract and Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager's recommended decision.

#### 10. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed, but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services. Force Majeure shall apply.

## 11. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within the time permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 28, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to OMNITRANS for all of its costs and damages, including, but not limited, any excess costs for such Work.
- E. All finished or unfinished documents and materials produced or procured under this Agreement shall become OMNITRANS' property upon date of such termination.

- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 10, Termination for Convenience.
- G. The rights and remedies of OMNITRANS provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

#### 12. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

#### 13. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract agreement the stipulation that CONTRACTOR, not OMNITRANS, is solely responsible for payment to the subcontractor for all amounts owing and that the subcontractor shall have no claim, and shall take no action against OMNITRANS, Member Agencies or officers, directors, employees or sureties thereof for nonpayment by CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall not, without the express written consent of Omnitrans, either:

- a. Substitute any person, firm, or corporation as subcontractor in place of the subcontractors identified below; or
- b. Permit any subcontract to be assigned or transferred; or
- c. Allow work to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed below.

Subcontractor's Name and Address	Work to Be Performed
Discount Glass & Mirror, Inc.	Glazing

9555 Distribution Drive #100	
San Diego, CA 92121	
858-549-2442	

## 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters.

#### 15. INSURANCE

## A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

## 1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below;
- b. Provide Omnitrans with valid original certificates of insurance and endorsements showing Omnitrans as an additional insured.

## 2) Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention (SIR)

SIR must be declared to and approved by Omnitrans. At the option of Omnitrans, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or SIR or Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

#### 3) Other Insurance Provisions

## a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the

obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

- For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.
- 2. Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Omnitrans.

#### b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

## c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

## 4) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VIII.** 

## 5) Verification of Coverage

- a. Contractor shall furnish Omnitrans with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All insurance certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by Omnitrans before work commences.
- b. As an alternative, Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.
- c. In lieu of purchasing insurance and providing original endorsements and or certificates of insurance, the Contractor may provide proof of self-insurance; such proof must be to the satisfaction of Omnitrans.

## 6) Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

## 7) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written or electronic notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

## B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

- 1). Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
- 2) Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.

3)	☐ Errors and Omissions Liability: \$1,000,000; combined single limit bodily and property damage liability per occurrence and \$ 3,000,000 aggregate or,
4)	Professional Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate.
5)	Workers' Compensation: statutory limits or,
6)	Self Insurance Program: a State Approved program in an amount and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California.
7)	Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence.
8)	Environmental Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
9)	☐ Umbrella Policy: \$4,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate Additional coverage for the above policies, <i>Omnitrans Additional Insured</i> .
10)	All drivers making deliveries of products specified on this solicitation shall have Hazardous Materials Endorsements on their Commercial Drivers License, and such other Endorsements as may be required by relevant laws and/or regulations.

#### 16. INDEMNITY

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) arising from or connected with any alleged act and/or omission of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

## 17. REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

## 18. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA

- A. No material or technical data prepared by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is to be released by CONTRACTOR to any other person or entity except as necessary for the performance of the Work. All press releases or information concerning the Work that might appear in any publication or dissemination, including but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, and electronic media, shall first be authorized in writing by OMNITRANS.
- B. The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall become the property of OMNITRANS without restriction or limitation on their use and shall be made available upon request to OMNITRANS at any time. Original copies of such shall be delivered to OMNITRANS upon completion of the Work or termination of the Work. CONTRACTOR shall be permitted to retain copies of such items for the furtherance of its technical proficiency; however, publication of this material is subject to the prior written approval of OMNITRANS. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

#### 19. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS. Copies may be made for CONTRACTOR's records, but shall not be furnished to others without prior written authorization from OMNITRANS. Such deliverables shall be deemed works made for hire, and all rights in copyright therein shall be retained by OMNITRANS.

#### 20. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

A. In the event OMNITRANS rightfully obtains copies of Proprietary Data under the terms of the separate License Agreement and Escrow Agreement that govern rights in Documentation, Software and Intellectual Property created and/or developed by Contractor, its Third Party Software Contractors and its Suppliers as part of the Project, any derivative works and associated documentation created by or on behalf of OMNITRANS by Permitted Programmers (as defined in the License Agreement) shall be the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS (collectively, "OMNITRANS Intellectual Property"), and OMNITRANS may use, disclose and exercise dominion and full rights of ownership, in any manner in OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in connection with the use, operation and maintenance of a transportation system administered by OMNITRANS. No use of OMNITRANS Intellectual Property shall be made for any purpose other than in conjunction with a transportation

system administered by CONTRACTOR, and OMNITRANS shall not sell, lease, rent, give away or otherwise disclose any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property to any outside third party other than Permitted Programmers. To the extent there may be any question of rights of ownership or use in any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property, Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors and suppliers (including without limitation its Third Party Software Contractors) to assign to OMNITRANS, all worldwide right, title and interest in and to all OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in a manner consistent with the foregoing terms of this paragraph. Contractor shall execute any documents as OMNITRANS may from time to time reasonably request to effectuate the terms of this paragraph.

B. All documentation and Software which predates this Contract and which otherwise owned by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors, and all Documentation and Software which is created by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors shall be Licensed Software or Licensed Documentation, as appropriate. All Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation shall be governed by the License Agreement by and between the parties of event date herewith.

## 21. WORK FOR HIRE

Any work created or produced as a part of this Agreement that may be defined under Section 101, Title 17, USC will be considered "work for hire" as it pertains to ownership rights. CONTRACTOR, by his/her endorsement hereon agrees that all rights to any work(s) created or produced are waived, and that ownership rests with OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR further agrees to ensure transfer of all rights to such work(s), as defined under federal copyright law, that may be created or produced under this Agreement by its suppliers, contractors or subcontractors.

#### 22. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim. The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

Even though a claim may be filed and/or in review by OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform in accordance with this Agreement.

## 23. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

#### 24. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

- A. CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise due professional care and competence in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.
- B. All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them. OMNITRANS shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require the immediate removal of CONTRACTOR's personnel at any level assigned to the performance of the Work at no additional fee or cost to OMNITRANS, if OMNITRANS considers such removal in its best interests and requests such removal in writing and such request is not done for illegal reasons. Further, an employee who is removed from performing Work under this Agreement under this Article shall not be reassigned to perform Work in any other capacity under this Agreement without OMNITRANS' prior written approval.

# 25. NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES

To ensure compliance with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to OMNITRANS disclosing the identity of any individual who CONTRACTOR desires to employ or retain under a contract, and who (1) presently serves as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS, or (2) served as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS within the previous 12 months of the date of the proposed employment or retention by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR's written notice shall indicate whether the individual will be an officer, principal or shareholder of the entity and/or will participate in the performance of this Agreement.

## 26. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

## 27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

- A. CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with and perform the Work required under this Agreement in conformity with requirements and standards of OMNITRANS, municipal and public agencies, public and private utilities, special districts, and railroad agencies whose facilities and work may be affected by Work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all Federal, state and local laws and ordinances.
- B. Government regulations that directly affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this contract and unforeseen impacts, which neither party could have contemplated at the onset of the contract and have an unconscionable impact on the CONTRACTOR may be given special pricing consideration. The parties, in good faith, shall review established rates and may adopt any mutually agreed new rates, which shall only be effective as agreed upon by the parties. Thorough documentation including all cost elements is required to support the Contractor's claim to any relief under this clause.

## 28. COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES

- A. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it is a Lobbyist Employer or if it has retained a Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist, as such terms are defined by OMNITRANS in its Ethics Policy, it shall comply or ensure that its Lobbying Firm and Lobbyist complies with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy.
- B. If CONTRACTOR (Lobbyist Employer) or its Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist fails to comply, in whole or in part, with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, such failure shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and OMNITRANS shall have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

#### 29. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

A. All records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications and other material relating to conduct of OMNITRANS' business, including materials submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal and during the course of performing the Work under this Agreement, shall become the exclusive

CONTRACT MKP18-37 REVISED 04/17/17 property of OMNITRANS and may be deemed public records. Said materials may be subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act. OMNITRANS' use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.

- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret, confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

#### 30. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

## 31. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, riots, or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

## 32. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and

CONTRACT MKP18-37 REVISED 04/17/17 kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

## 33. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

- A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

## 34. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and the proper venue of any action brought hereunder is and shall be the County of San Bernardino, California.

#### 35. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

# 36. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

- A. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has all necessary licenses and permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, and the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, FIRM warrants that its employees, agents, and contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. CONTRACTOR shall notify OMNITRANS immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses; pay all charges, assessments and fees, as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.

## 37. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of RFQ-MKP18-37 and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) CONTRACTOR's bid dated 7/13/17 and its Appendices, Exhibits, and Attachments.

## 38. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date shown below, and effective on the date first hereinabove written.

OMNITRANS	CONTRACTOR Company name: Discount Glass & Mirror, Inc.		
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Name: Anthony Bortz Title: President		
5	9/14/17		

Date

Federal Tax I.D. No. 33-0884235

IDP-

Date

# ATTACHMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK MKP18-37 SHELTER ADVERTISING PANEL GLASS

## I. PURPOSE:

Contractor shall provide approximately 600 sheets of Shelter Advertising (Ad) Panel Glass.

## II. SPECIFICATIONS:

- 1. Approximately 600 sheets 47 5/16" x 68 5/16" x 3/16"
- 2. Thick clear tempered safety glass with swiped or seamed edges.

Shelter glass must be delivered on an "A" frame pallet in lots equivalent to fifty (50) sheets to:

Omnitrans
Attention: Mel Cabang
1700 West 5th Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411

3. Shelter ad panel glass will be ordered on an as needed basis, no guarantee of usage. A blanket Purchase Order will be provided to the successful bidder.

## III. WARRANTY:

All equipment supplied is to be new and in excellent condition for the purpose it was acquired for, free from defects with all workmanship guaranteed, delivered in working order for installation.

\*\*\*\*End of Scope of Work\*\*\*\*

ATTACHMENT B - PRICING				
MKP18-37				And other property construction and property of the state
SHELTER ADVERTISING PANEL GLASS	ASS			
Item Num Description	Unit of MeQuantity* Unit Price Total**	Unit Price	Total**	
1 Sheets of tempered glass 47 5/16" x 68 5/16" x 3/16" seamed (swiped) edges	LOT 600	600 \$ 65.00	↔	39,000.00
2 Sales tax at 8.00%	LOT	\$3,120.00	\$	3,120.00
3 Delivery/ Freight Charges	LOT	:	↔	ŧ
		Subtotal	\$ 4	42,120.00
		Total	8	42,120.00
				AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
*Omnitrans makes no guarantee of usage of items with regard to quantity				
**All subsequent year pricing shall be determined in November of each year				
using the change (increase/decrease) of Consumer Price Index (CPI).				



# **CONTRACT AGREEMENT**

# between

CONTRACTOR	) CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC 3229 Sawmill Parkway Delaware, OH 43015	CONTRACT NO. MNT18-07
Delaware, On 43013	Replacement Bus Windows
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR") Telephone: (800) 665-2637 Email: newflyerparts@newflyer.com	) ) ) )
	) ) )
And	) Contract Amount: \$568,300 )
	) ) )
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")	) Omnitrans Project Manager: ) Name: Rick Barone ) Title: Materials Manager ) Telephone: (909) 379-7204 ) Email: ) rick.barone@omnitrans.org
	Contract Administrator: Name: Christine Van Matre Title: Contract Administrator Telephone: (909) 379-7122 Email: christine.vanmatre@omnitrans.org
	) ) ) )



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	4
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	4
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	5
4.	COMPENSATION	5
5.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT	6
6.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	7
7.	NOTIFICATION	7
8.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	8
9.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	9
10.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	10
11.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	10
12.	ASSIGNMENT	11
13.	SUBCONTRACTING	11
14.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	12
15.	INSURANCE	12
16.	INDEMNITY	15
17.	REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK	15
18.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA	16
19.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	16
20.	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS	16

21.	WORK FOR HIRE	17
22.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	17
23.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	17
24.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	18
25.	NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES	18
26.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	18
27.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	19
28.	COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES	19
29.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	19
30.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	20
31.	FORCE MAJEURE	20
32.	CONFIDENTIALITY	20
33.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	21
34.	GOVERNING LAW	21
35.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	21
36.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	21
37.	PRECEDENCE	22
38.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	22
ATTAC	CHMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK	
ATTAC	CHMENT B - REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS	
ATTAC	CHMENT C - PRICING	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this 10th day of October, 2017, and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and The Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

#### **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Attachment A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

## SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces or forces of another contractor or entity. CONTRACTOR will cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff or other contractor or entity that may be providing similar or the same Work for OMNITRANS.

## 2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through <u>October 9, 2020</u>, unless terminated as specified in Section 10 and 11 of this Agreement. Omnitrans has no obligation to purchase any specified amount of products/services. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement. The "maximum term" of this Agreement shall be the period extended from October 10, 2020 through October 9, 2022, which period encompasses the Initial Term and the Option Year One and Option Year Two.

## 3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
  - 1) Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
  - 2) Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

#### 4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a FIXED PRICE basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment C, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed Five Hundred Sixty-Eight Thousand Three Hundred Dollars (\$568,300), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, insurance, and profit.

#### 5. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice OMNITRANS on a monthly basis no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of each month. CONTRACTOR shall furnish information as may be requested by OMNITRANS to substantiate the validity of an invoice.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Accounts Payable

## Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

A separate invoice shall be used for each shipment. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:

- Contract number
- Invoice number
- Description of delivery
- Delivery Date
- Total quantity delivered
- Information as requested by OMNITRANS
- B. OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

## C. TITLE

- a. Title shall pass to Omnitrans at the time of payment.
- b. The title transferred as above shall in each case be good, and free and clear from any and all security interests, liens, and/or other encumbrances.
- c. The transfer of title as specified above shall not imply Acceptance by Omnitrans, nor relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for strict compliance with the Contract, including warranty as specified in the Article entitled Warranty of Work, and for any loss of or damage to the Work.
- d. The Contractor at its own expense shall promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Omnitrans proper bills of sale or other written instruments of title in a form as required by Omnitrans; said instruments shall convey to the Omnitrans' title free and clear of debts, claims, liens, mortgages, taxes, and/or encumbrances.
- e. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss of or damage to Work purchased hereunder until they are delivered, unloaded, and received by Omnitrans at the FOB Destination specified herein. Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence, shall cease when title passes to Omnitrans.

#### 6. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

CONTRACTOR agrees that OMNITRANS or any duly authorized representative shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, time cards, employment records or other records relating to this Agreement. Such material, including all pertinent cost, accounting, financial records, and proprietary data must be kept and maintained by CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after completion of this Agreement unless OMNITRANS' written permission is given to CONTRACTOR to dispose of material prior to this time.

## 7. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To OMNITRANS:

To CONTRACTOR:

Omnitrans
1700 West Fifth Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411
Attn: Christine Van Matre
Contract Administrator

The Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC 3229 Sawmill Parkway Delaware, OH 43015 Attn: Kerri Maloney Director, Customer Service

## 8. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

# A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Rick Barone, Materials Manager

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
  - Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
  - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed to OMNITRANS' satisfaction.
  - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

## B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

Vincent Lamirande	Customer Service Rep
(800) 665-2637	newflyerparts@newflyer.com

Any propose/substitution or replacement by Contractor of Contractor's key personnel shall ensure that such person possesses the same or better expertise and experience than the key personnel being substituted or replaced. Omnitrans reserves the right to interview such person to ascertain and verify if such proposed substitution or replacement does in deed possess such expertise and experience.

OMNITRANS awarded this Agreement to CONTRACTOR based on OMNITRANS' confidence and reliance on the expertise of CONTRACTOR's key personnel described above. CONTRACTOR shall not reassign key personnel or assign other personnel to key personnel roles until CONTRACTOR obtains prior written approval from OMNITRANS.

#### 9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any disputes between the successful CONTRACTOR and OMNITRANS relating to the implementation or administration of the Contract shall be resolved in accordance with this section.

- A. The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in meetings or communications between proposer and OMNITRANS.
- B. If the dispute remains unresolved fifteen (15) days after it first arises, proposer may request that Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall issue the recommended decision in writing and provide a copy to proposer.
- C. If the dispute remains unresolved after review by Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager, either party may seek judicial resolution of the dispute in an appropriate Court of the State of California.

D. Pending final resolution of a dispute under this section, proposer shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Contract and Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager's recommended decision.

## 10. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed, but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services. Force Majeure shall apply.

## 11. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within the time permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 28, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to OMNITRANS for all of its costs and damages, including, but not limited, any excess costs for such Work.
- E. All finished or unfinished documents and materials produced or procured under this Agreement shall become OMNITRANS' property upon date of such termination.

- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 10, Termination for Convenience.
- G. The rights and remedies of OMNITRANS provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

#### 12. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

#### 13. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract agreement the stipulation that CONTRACTOR, not OMNITRANS, is solely responsible for payment to the subcontractor for all amounts owing and that the subcontractor shall have no claim, and shall take no action against OMNITRANS, Member Agencies or officers, directors, employees or sureties thereof for nonpayment by CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall not, without the express written consent of Omnitrans, either:

- a. Substitute any person, firm, or corporation as subcontractor in place of the subcontractors identified below; or
- b. Permit any subcontract to be assigned or transferred; or
- c. Allow work to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed below.

Subcontractor's Name and Address

Work to Be Performed

N/A

-			

#### 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters.

## 15. INSURANCE

#### A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

## 1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below:
- b. Provide Omnitrans with valid original certificates of insurance and endorsements showing Omnitrans as an additional insured.

## 2) Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention (SIR)

SIR must be declared to and approved by Omnitrans. At the option of Omnitrans, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or SIR or Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

## 3) Other Insurance Provisions

## a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the

obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name <u>Omnitrans</u>, its officers, officials, <u>employees</u>, <u>agents and volunteers</u> as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

- For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.
- 2. Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- 3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Omnitrans.

## b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

## c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

## 4) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VIII.** 

# 5) Verification of Coverage

- a. Contractor shall furnish Omnitrans with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All insurance certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by Omnitrans before work commences.
- b. As an alternative, Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.
- c. In lieu of purchasing insurance and providing original endorsements and or certificates of insurance, the Contractor may provide proof of self-insurance; such proof must be to the satisfaction of Omnitrans.

## 6) Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

#### 7) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written or electronic notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

## B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

- 1) Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
- 2) Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.

3)	limit bodily and property damage liability per occurrence and \$ 3,000,000 aggregate or,
4)	Professional Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate.
5)	Workers' Compensation: statutory limits or,
6)	Self Insurance Program: a State Approved program in an amount and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California.
7)	Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence.
8)	☐ Environmental Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
9)	☐ Umbrella Policy: \$4,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate Additional coverage for the above policies, <i>Omnitrans Additional Insured</i> .
10)	All drivers making deliveries of products specified on this solicitation shall have Hazardous Materials Endorsements on their Commercial Drivers License, and such other Endorsements as may be required by relevant laws and/or regulations.

## 16. INDEMNITY

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) arising from or connected with any alleged act and/or omission of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

# 17. REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

## 18. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA

- A. No material or technical data prepared by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is to be released by CONTRACTOR to any other person or entity except as necessary for the performance of the Work. All press releases or information concerning the Work that might appear in any publication or dissemination, including but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, and electronic media, shall first be authorized in writing by OMNITRANS.
- B. The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall become the property of OMNITRANS without restriction or limitation on their use and shall be made available upon request to OMNITRANS at any time. Original copies of such shall be delivered to OMNITRANS upon completion of the Work or termination of the Work. CONTRACTOR shall be permitted to retain copies of such items for the furtherance of its technical proficiency; however, publication of this material is subject to the prior written approval of OMNITRANS. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

## 19. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS. Copies may be made for CONTRACTOR's records, but shall not be furnished to others without prior written authorization from OMNITRANS. Such deliverables shall be deemed works made for hire, and all rights in copyright therein shall be retained by OMNITRANS.

## 20. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

A. In the event OMNITRANS rightfully obtains copies of Proprietary Data under the terms of the separate License Agreement and Escrow Agreement that govern rights in Documentation, Software and Intellectual Property created and/or developed by Contractor, its Third Party Software Contractors and its Suppliers as part of the Project, any derivative works and associated documentation created by or on behalf of OMNITRANS by Permitted Programmers (as defined in the License Agreement) shall be the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS (collectively, "OMNITRANS Intellectual Property"), and OMNITRANS may use, disclose and exercise dominion and full rights of ownership, in any manner in OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in connection with the use, operation and maintenance of a transportation system administered by OMNITRANS. No use of OMNITRANS Intellectual Property shall be made for any purpose other than in conjunction with a transportation

system administered by CONTRACTOR, and OMNITRANS shall not sell, lease, rent, give away or otherwise disclose any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property to any outside third party other than Permitted Programmers. To the extent there may be any question of rights of ownership or use in any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property, Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors and suppliers (including without limitation its Third Party Software Contractors) to assign to OMNITRANS, all worldwide right, title and interest in and to all OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in a manner consistent with the foregoing terms of this paragraph. Contractor shall execute any documents as OMNITRANS may from time to time reasonably request to effectuate the terms of this paragraph.

B. All documentation and Software which predates this Contract and which otherwise owned by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors, and all Documentation and Software which is created by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors shall be Licensed Software or Licensed Documentation, as appropriate. All Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation shall be governed by the License Agreement by and between the parties of event date herewith.

#### 21. WORK FOR HIRE

Any work created or produced as a part of this Agreement that may be defined under Section 101, Title 17, USC will be considered "work for hire" as it pertains to ownership rights. CONTRACTOR, by his/her endorsement hereon agrees that all rights to any work(s) created or produced are waived, and that ownership rests with OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR further agrees to ensure transfer of all rights to such work(s), as defined under federal copyright law, that may be created or produced under this Agreement by its suppliers, contractors or subcontractors.

#### 22. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim. The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

Even though a claim may be filed and/or in review by OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform in accordance with this Agreement.

#### 23. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

#### 24. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

- A. CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise due professional care and competence in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.
- B. All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them. OMNITRANS shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require the immediate removal of CONTRACTOR's personnel at any level assigned to the performance of the Work at no additional fee or cost to OMNITRANS, if OMNITRANS considers such removal in its best interests and requests such removal in writing and such request is not done for illegal reasons. Further, an employee who is removed from performing Work under this Agreement under this Article shall not be reassigned to perform Work in any other capacity under this Agreement without OMNITRANS' prior written approval.

### 25. NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES

To ensure compliance with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to OMNITRANS disclosing the identity of any individual who CONTRACTOR desires to employ or retain under a contract, and who (1) presently serves as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS, or (2) served as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS within the previous 12 months of the date of the proposed employment or retention by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR's written notice shall indicate whether the individual will be an officer, principal or shareholder of the entity and/or will participate in the performance of this Agreement.

#### 26. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

#### 27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

- A. CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with and perform the Work required under this Agreement in conformity with requirements and standards of OMNITRANS, municipal and public agencies, public and private utilities, special districts, and railroad agencies whose facilities and work may be affected by Work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all Federal, state and local laws and ordinances.
- B. Government regulations that directly affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this contract and unforeseen impacts, which neither party could have contemplated at the onset of the contract and have an unconscionable impact on the CONTRACTOR may be given special pricing consideration. The parties, in good faith, shall review established rates and may adopt any mutually agreed new rates, which shall only be effective as agreed upon by the parties. Thorough documentation including all cost elements is required to support the Contractor's claim to any relief under this clause.

#### 28. COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES

- A. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it is a Lobbyist Employer or if it has retained a Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist, as such terms are defined by OMNITRANS in its Ethics Policy, it shall comply or ensure that its Lobbying Firm and Lobbyist complies with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy.
- B. If CONTRACTOR (Lobbyist Employer) or its Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist fails to comply, in whole or in part, with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, such failure shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and OMNITRANS shall have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

#### 29. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

A. All records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications and other material relating to conduct of OMNITRANS' business, including materials submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal and during the course of performing the Work under this Agreement, shall become the exclusive

property of OMNITRANS and may be deemed public records. Said materials may be subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act. OMNITRANS' use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.

- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret, confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

#### 30. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

#### 31. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, riots, or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

#### 32. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and

kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

#### 33. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

- A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

#### 34. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and the proper venue of any action brought hereunder is and shall be the County of San Bernardino, California.

#### 35. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

#### 36. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

- Α. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has all necessary licenses and permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, and the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, FIRM warrants that its employees, agents, and contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. CONTRACTOR shall notify OMNITRANS immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses; pay all charges, assessments and fees, as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.

#### 37. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of IFB-MNT18-07, and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) CONTRACTOR's bid dated August 14, 2017 and its Appendices, Exhibits, Attachments.

#### 38. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date shown below, and effective on the date first hereinabove written.

OMNITRANS	CONTRACTOR Company nam⊌n≏ Afteri	CONTRACTOR Company namene Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC	
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Name: Title:		
Dela	JUL 2 4 2017	Kerri Moloney Director, Customer Service (Aftermerket)	
Date	Date		

Federal Tax I.D. No.

98-0453252

JDP9/

## ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK MNT18-07 REPLACEMENT BUS WINDOWS

#### 1. GENERAL

- A. This specification covers requirements for the replacement of bus windows on the driver, passenger, door and roof assemblies of New Flyer bus models C40LF, C40LFR, XN40 and XN60.
- B. The passenger windows on Omnitrans' buses purchased prior to 2012 were made from bus Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) standard equipment glass. All models after 2012 (See Exhibit III) were produced with Arrow Global, Storm-Tite Flush Window Series with Serviceable Glazing.
- C. Specifications used for each bus model shall be equal to or exceeding the bus OEM original installation bill of materials components.

#### 2. DELIVERABLES

Contractor may bid the following options:

- A. Option 1
  - 1) Deliver glass per specification.
  - 2) Deliver Flush windows attached to outside frame. See Exhibit I.
- B. Option 2
  - 1) Deliver glass per specification.
  - 2) Services to install new glazing into existing Flush window frames. See Exhibit II.

#### 3. MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. The glazing shall have a ¼ inch nominal thickness and be laminated heat-treated safety glass conforming to the requirements of ANSI Z26.1-1997 Test Grouping 2 and the Recommended Practices defined in SAE J673.
- B. The glazing tint shall be blue in color and comply with AS2 DOT requirements, blocking 99% of the UV and allowing less than 6% of the infrared heat to pass through the pane.

#### 4. SPECIFICATIONS

- A. WINDSHIELD (Intended for reference only)
  - 1) The windshield shall permit a driver's field of view as referenced in SAE Recommended Practice J1050.
  - 2) The vertically upward view shall be a minimum of 15° measured above the horizontal and excluding any shaded band.

- 3) The vertically downward view shall permit detection of an object 3-1/2 feet high no more than 2 feet in front of the bus.
- 4) The horizontal view shall be a minimum of 90° above the line of sight.
- 5) Any binocular obscuration due to a center divider may be ignored when determining the 90° requirement provided that the divider does not exceed a 3° angle in the driver's field of view.
- 6) Windshield pillars shall not exceed 10° of binocular obscuration.
- 7) The windshield shall be designed and installed to minimize external glare as well as reflections from inside the bus.
- 8) When the bus is operated at night with the passenger interior lighting on, essentially no reflections shall be visible in the windshield immediately forward of the driver's barrier.
- 9) Reflections in the remainder of the windshield shall be minimized, and no reflection of any part of the bus interior behind the driver's barrier shall be visible in the windshield.
- 10) The windshield shall be easily replaceable by removing zip-locks from the windshield retaining moldings. Bonded-in-place windshield shall not be used.
- 11) The glazing material shall have single density tint.
- 12) The upper portion of the windshield above the driver's field of view shall have a dark, shaded band with a minimum luminous transmittance of 6 percent (6%) when tested in accordance to ASTM D-1003.

#### B. DRIVER'S WINDOW

- 1) The driver's window shall be full sliding and open sufficiently to permit the seated driver to easily adjust the left outside rearview mirror.
- 2) This window section shall slide rearward in tracks or channels designed to last a minimum of two years.
- 3) The driver's side window may or may not be bonded in place and shall be easily replaceable. The glazing material shall have a single density tint.
- 4) The driver's lower sliding side window shall be provided without a locking mechanism. Driver's upper sliding window shall be provided with a locking mechanism.
- 5) The operator's side window shall be the sliding type, requiring the front and rear halves of sash to latch upon closing, and shall open sufficiently to permit the seated operator to easily adjust the street-side outside rearview mirror.
  - a. There shall be two sliders one front and one back.

- b. When in an open position, the window shall not rattle or close during braking.
- c. The window section shall slide in tracks or channels designed to last the service life of the bus.
- d. The window shall be bonded in place and the sliders shall be easily replaceable.
- e. The glazing tint shall be blue in color and comply with AS2 DOT requirements, blocking 99% of the UV and allowing less than 6% of the infrared heat to pass through the pane.

#### C. SIDE WINDOWS

- 1) The material shall conform to requirements of ANSI Z26.1-1997 Test Grouping 2 and the Recommended Practices defined in SAE J673.
- 2) Safety glass required.

#### 5. **DELIVERY**

- A. Delivery shall be Freight On Board (FOB) Destination.
- B. Delivery location:

Omnitrans Shipping/Receiving 1700 West 5<sup>th</sup> Street San Bernardino, CA 92411

- C. The hours of delivery are 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday only. In the event of an urgent operational need, Omnitrans will consider alternate delivery times on a case by case basis that must have prior authorization by Omnitrans' Materials Manager.
- D. Contractor shall ship product three (3) days after receipt of order.
- E. Option 2 Flush Windows: Contractor shall arrange for pickup within two (2) business days after Omnitrans notifies Contractor of need. Contractor shall return finish product within seven (7) business days from date of pickup.

#### 6. WARRANTY

All window assemblies including frames, rubber seals, and glass shall be warranted against deterioration or delamination of the glazing for a minimum period of one year. Warranties shall cover all material, labor and workmanship, excluding damage caused by vandalism, bus accidents, poor care and maintenance.

#### 7. DOT AND MANUFACTURER IDENTIFICATION

Each glazing component and or window guard shall have the manufacturer's Department of Transportation (DOT) registered identification "bug" permanently applied. According to the DOT requirement, the "bug" shall include the date (month and year) of manufacture applied in the same location.

#### 8. EXHIBITS





Picture shows Frame Assembly for Emergency Fixed Flush Window. New Flyer P/N 6409431 Flush Window Frame Assembly, Emergency.





Labor shall include chipping excess glass and preparing surface for new glazing per manufactures specifications.



Labor shall include all frame corrections as needed. The end results shall be equal to New Flyer P/N (as shown above in this picture) 6409431 Flush Window Frame Assembly, Emergency.

#### Exhibit III

#### FLEET DESCPRIPTION

Year	Make	Model	Series	Engine	Transmission
2001	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-674	John Deere 8.1L	Allison B400R
2003	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-813	Cummins 8.3L	ZF Trans HP-690
2005	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-842	John Deere 8.1L	ZF Trans HP-690
2009	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-1337	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Allison B400R
2011	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-1563	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Allison B400R
2011	New Flyer	C40LF	SR-1564	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Voith D864.5
2012	New Flyer	XN40	SR-1677	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Voith D864.5
2014	New Flyer	XN40	SR-1820	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Voith D864.5
2012	New Flyer	XN60	SR-1565	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Allison B400R
2015	New Flyer	XN40	SR-1965	Cummins 8.9 ISL G	Allison B400R
2016	New Flyer	XN40	SR-2029	Cummins ISL G	Allison B400R

\*End Scope of Work\*

# Attachment B REGULATORY REQUIREMENT Table of Contents

#### **Contents**

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE	2
DISCRIMINATION	3
WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS	3
PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	3
ACCESS TO RECORDS	4
FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES	4
ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS	5
CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS	5
NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES	7
PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS	7
SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT	8
RECYCLED PRODUCTS	8
CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS	9
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LOBBYING POLICY	9
BUY AMERICA	. 10
CARGO PREFERENCE	. 10
FLY AMERICA	. 11
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT	. 11
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26	. 13
ADA ACCESS	. 14
ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM	. 16
TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS	. 17
BONDING REQUIREMENTS	. 18
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	. 18
PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552	. 25
TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	. 26
SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41	. 28
BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	
VETER ANS PREFERENCE	20

#### **REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS**

\* Marks Required Subcontract Provisions that must flow down to all subcontracts as defined in the Article entitled SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS herein.

#### **RR-01 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE \***

#### **Applicability** A.

This Article applies to all contracts.

#### В. Compliance with §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code

Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code. Without reducing or affecting its obligation to comply with any and all of said provisions, Contractor specifically covenants:

- 1. Contractor shall not cause or permit any member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans to have any financial interest in the Contract;
- 2. Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract involving services or property with a person or business prohibited from transacting such business with Omnitrans:
- 3. Contractor warrants and represents that to its knowledge no Board member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans has any interest, whether contractual, noncontractual, financial or otherwise, in this Contract, or in the business or any other contract or transaction of the Contractor or any Subcontractor and that if any such interest comes to Contractor's knowledge at any time, Contractor shall make a full and complete disclosure of all such information in writing to Omnitrans.

#### C. **Campaign Contributions**

Neither Contractor nor its Agents shall give or offer to give any campaign contribution to any member of Omnitrans Board of Directors in violation of the California Government Code §§84300 et seq., or of the Administrative Code. Contractor shall submit a Certification of Campaign Contributions with all COs of two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) or more.

RR – Page 2

#### RR-02 DISCRIMINATION \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. In connection with the performance of Work provided for under this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will not, on the grounds of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, or age, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons in any manner prohibited by Federal, State or local laws.

#### RR-03 WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Contractor shall not adopt any rule, regulation, or policy preventing an employee from disclosing information to a government or law enforcement agency, where the employee believes the information discloses violation or noncompliance with a state or Federal regulation; nor shall Contractor retaliate against an employee for taking such actions as set forth in the t. seq.

#### RR-04 PUBLIC RECORDS ACT \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

- B. Except as otherwise provided herein, all records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications, and all other information relating to the conduct of Omnitrans business, including all information and documents submitted by Contractor ("Records"), shall become the exclusive property of Omnitrans and shall be deemed public records. Said Records are subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code §6250 et. seq.). Omnitrans use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. Omnitrans will use its best efforts to inform the Contractor of any request for any financial records or documents marked "Trade Secret", "Confidential" or "Proprietary" provided by Contractor to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any Records, Omnitrans sole involvement will be as a stakeholder, retaining the Records until otherwise ordered by a

RR – Page 3 Updated: January 19, 2017 court. The submitting party, at its sole expense and risk, shall be fully responsible for any and all fees for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the Records and shall indemnify and hold Omnitrans harmless from all costs and expenses including attorney's fees in connection with any such action.

#### RR-05 ACCESS TO RECORDS \*

#### A. **Applicability**

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

- B. Contractor agrees to provide Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or the FTA's authorized representatives, including any FTA Project Management Oversight Contractor, access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.
- C. If this Contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1) and was entered in to through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make records related to this Contract available to Omnitrans, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- D. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

#### RR-06 FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES\*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. This Contract includes, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the Contract provisions. All contractual provisions

RR – Page 4

required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008 and revised March 18, 2013 (including any changes), and are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Omnitrans requests which would cause Omnitrans to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

This Contract is subject to a financial assistance agreement between Omnitrans and the Federal Transit Administration of the US Department of Transportation and all laws, regulations, guidelines, and provisions of the financial assistance agreement apply to this Contract and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

C. Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable federal laws and regulations, including without limitation FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including those listed directly or by reference in Applicable Grant Agreements between Omnitrans and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Contract collectively "Federal Requirements". These Federal Requirements may change and the changed Federal Requirements will apply to this Contract as required unless the Federal Government determines otherwise. Contractor's failure to so comply with the Federal Requirements shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.

## RR-07 ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

#### A. **Applicability**

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 USC §6321 et seq.

#### RR-08 CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national

RR – Page 5 Updated: January 19, 2017 origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, Contractor shall comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

#### C. Equal Employment Opportunity

- Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex In accordance with Title VII of the (a) Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect activities undertaken in the course of the Contract. Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (b) Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (c) Disabilities In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, Contractor shall comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (d) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract, modified only if necessary to identify parties, as required by Federal regulations.

RR – Page 6 Updated: January 19, 2017

#### RR-09 NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award this Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to Omnitrans, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that Contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from this Contract.

Contractor shall include this Article in each Subcontract and shall not modify the Article, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

## RR-10 PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

- B. The provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, shall apply to actions pertaining to this Contract. Upon execution of this Contract, Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining this Contract or the FTA assisted project for which this Contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- C. Contractor also acknowledges that this Contract is connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307 and if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

D. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. Contractor shall not modify the Article, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

#### RR-11 SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT\*

#### A. **Applicability**

This article applies to federally funded contracts and subcontracts at any level expected to equal or exceed \$25,000 as well as any contract or subcontract (at any level) for Federally required auditing services.

B. This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, Contractor shall verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.

Contractor shall comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and shall include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

C. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C throughout the period of this Contract. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Omnitrans. If it is later determined that Contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to Omnitrans, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

#### RR-12 RECYCLED PRODUCTS

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded operations/management, construction, or materials & supplies contracts for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency, when procuring \$10,000 or more per year.

- B. To the extent practicable and economically feasible, a competitive preference shall be given for products and services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.
- C. The Contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

RR – Page 8

#### RR-13 CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS\*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts over \$100,000.

#### B. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and all applicable clean water standards of the State of California and any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office, and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

#### C. CLEAN AIR

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. and all applicable Clean Air Standards of the State of California or any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA, the appropriate EPA Regional Office and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

D. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### RR-14 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LOBBYING POLICY \*

#### A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded contracts over \$100,000.

B. The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, requires that Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," attached hereto as the certification entitled, "Certification of Compliance with Federal Lobbying Requirements." As set forth in the certifications, each tier of subcontractors shall certify to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with

RR – Page 9 Updated: January 19, 2017 non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures shall be forwarded from tier to tier up to Omnitrans.

#### RR-15 BUY AMERICA \*

#### A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded rolling stock purchase and construction contracts over \$150,000 and to contracts over \$150,000 for materials & supplies for steel, iron, or manufactured products.

B. Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 CFR Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, and microcomputer equipment and software. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. 661.11. Rolling stock must be assembled in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content.

Omnitrans may investigate Contractor's, any Subcontractor's, and any Supplier's compliance with this Article. If an investigation is initiated, Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier shall document its compliance, in accordance with 49 CFR 661.15, and cooperate with the investigation. Contractor shall incorporate the Buy America conditions set forth in this Article in every subcontract or purchase order and shall enforce such conditions.

C. FTA requires a Buy America certification to be submitted with the proposal, or the proposal shall be considered non-responsive.

#### RR-16 CARGO PREFERENCE\*

#### A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded contracts involving equipment, materials, or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels

#### B. USE OF UNITED STATES FLAG VESSELS

Contractor shall use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or

RR – Page 10

commodities pursuant to this Contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels.

Contractor shall furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to the Omnitrans (through Contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.)

Contractor shall include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this Contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

#### RR-17 FLY AMERICA

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts if the contract or subcontracts may involve the international transportation of goods, equipment, or personnel by air.

B. Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and sub recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

#### RR-18 CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded construction contracts over \$2,000 (including ferry vessels), rolling stock purchases over \$2,500 and to operations/management contracts over \$2,500 (except transportation services)

RR – Page 11 Updated: January 19, 2017

- B. Pursuant to the Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts subject to the Federal Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C.A. § 327 through 332 as implemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 29 CFR 5.5 (b) and (c) Contractor and Subcontractor's contracting for any part of the Contract work shall comply with the following:
  - 1. **Overtime requirements** Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract work that requires or involves the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
  - 2. **Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages** In the event of any violation of the Article set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article Contractor and any Subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, Contractor and Subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article, in the sum of ten dollars (\$10) for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article.
  - 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies payable on account of work performed by Contractor or Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of Contractor or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this Article.
  - 4. Subcontracts Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert this Article in any Subcontracts and also an Article requiring the Subcontractors to include this Article in any lower tier Subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with this Article.
  - 5. Payrolls and basic records The records to be maintained hereinabove shall be made available by Contractor or Subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by Omnitrans and U.S. Dept. of Labor. Contractor and Subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the Contract

RR – Page 12

for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the Contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.

#### RR-19 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26

#### **Disadvantaged Business Enterprises**

- A. This Contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The agency's overall goal for DBE participation is 3.3%.
- B. Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted Contract. Failure by Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as Omnitrans deems appropriate. Each subcontract Contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this paragraph (*see* 49 CFR 26.13(b)).
- C. Bidders are required to document sufficient DBE participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for in 49 CFR 26.53. Award of this contract is conditioned on submission of the following concurrent with and accompanying sealed bid concurrent with and accompanying an initial proposal prior to award:
  - 1. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in this contract;
  - 2. A description of the work each DBE will perform;
  - 3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
  - 4. Written documentation of the bidder's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet the contract goal;
  - 5. Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and
  - 6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts to do so.

Bidders must present the information required above as a matter of responsiveness with initial proposals prior to contract award] (*see* 49 CFR 26.53(3)).

The successful bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

D. Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 7 days after the contractor's

RR – Page 13 Updated: January 19, 2017 receipt of payment for that work from the Omnitrans. In addition, Contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to his contract is satisfactorily completed.

E. Contractor must promptly notify Omnitrans whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. Contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of Omnitrans.

#### **RR-20** ADA ACCESS

#### A. **Applicability**

This Article applies to federally funded Architect & Engineer, Operations/Management, Rolling Stock Purchase, and Construction contracts

#### **Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities** B.

Contractor shall comply with:

- 1. The requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly persons and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy;
- All applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 2. amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps;
- 3. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act;
- 4. The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act; and
- 5. All applicable requirements of the following regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto:

RR – Page 14

- (1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
- (2) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
- (3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
- (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- (6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- (7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- (8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and
- (9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; and
- (10) FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609;
- (11) Any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

#### RR-21 ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM \*

#### A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts for transit operations.

## B. FTA Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations Regulations

Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the FTA anti-drug and alcohol misuse regulations (49 CFR Part 655) and the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs (49 CFR Part 40) to the full extent that they are, by their terms, applicable to Contractor and its Subcontractors. The regulations apply to all "contractors" that have "covered employees" that perform "safety sensitive functions" as those terms are defined in the regulations.

#### C. Certificate of Compliance

The CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 49 CFR PARTS 655, PREVENTION OF ALCOHOL MISUSE AND PROHIBITED DRUG USE IN TRANSIT, submitted by Contractor prior to award, is incorporated as part of the Contract Documents.

#### D. **Drug and Alcohol Testing Program**

In the event that any part of the Work under this Contract falls within the scope of 49 CFR Part 655, Contractor, and its Subcontractors (as applicable), shall establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of California, or Omnitrans, to inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. Contractor shall annually certify its compliance with Parts 653 and 65. To certify compliance the contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal Register.

#### E. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace Program

In addition to the above, for Work performed on Omnitrans property, Contractor shall provide an Alcohol and Drug-free Workplace Program in accordance with FTA requirements found at <a href="http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/default.asp">http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/default.asp</a>

RR – Page 16 Updated: January 19, 2017

#### RR-22 TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS \*

#### A. **Applicability**

Subject to the limitations in Sections B, C, and D, this Article applies if this Contract involves transit operations to be performed by employees of a Contractor recognized by FTA to be a transit operator, and if FTA has determined that it is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

#### **B.** General Transit Employee Protective Requirements

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance (other than Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or 49 U.S.C. § 5311), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under this Contract, then Contractor shall perform the transit operations work under the Contract in compliance with terms and conditions, (a) determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. A 5333(b), and U.S. Department of Labor ("U. S. DOL") guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in a U. S. DOL letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

## C. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a) (2) for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under the Contract, Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the terms and conditions determined, (a) by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in the U.S. DOL's letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

### D. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area

RR – Page 17 Updated: January 19, 2017 Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL or any revision thereto.

#### E. **Indemnity**

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Omnitrans, and its Board Members, employees and agents from and against all liability, claims, demands actions, costs, judgments, penalties, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or in connection with Contractor's failure to comply with or failure to carry out its responsibilities under all applicable provisions of Sections B, C and D of this Article.

#### RR-23 BONDING REQUIREMENTS

#### **Applicability to Contracts**

For those construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, FTA may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the recipient, provided that they meet the minimum requirements for construction contracts as follows:

- A. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to ten (10) percent of the bid price. The "bid guarantees" shall consist of a firm commitment and may be in any of the following forms: (a) cash; (b) cashier's check payment to Omnitrans; (c) a certified check payable to the city; or (d) a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety insurer. Such as a bid bond, certifies check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.
- B. A performance bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.
- C. A payment bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment, as required by law, of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract.

#### RR-24 DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

#### **Background and Application**

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are

RR – Page 18

incorporated into a single clause (see 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

#### Clause Language

#### **Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts**

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

RR – Page 19 Updated: January 19, 2017

- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be

RR – Page 20

classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:

- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to

RR – Page 21 Updated: January 19, 2017 the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

RR – Page 22 Updated: January 19, 2017

- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) **Apprentices and trainees** (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship

RR – Page 23 Updated: January 19, 2017 program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) Trainees Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) **Compliance with Copeland Act requirements** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

RR – Page 24 Updated: January 19, 2017

- (7) **Contract termination: debarment** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) **Certification of eligibility** (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

#### **RR-25**

PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552

#### **Applicability to Contracts**

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

#### Flow Down

The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each third party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

#### Model Clause/Language

The text of the following clause has not been mandated by statute or specific regulation, but has been developed by FTA.

**Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements** - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

- (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974,
  - 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.
- (2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### RR- 26 TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

#### **Applicability to Contracts**

All contracts (with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education,) in excess of \$10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (For contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education the threshold is \$100,000.) In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor.

#### Flow Down

The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000, with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

- a. **Termination for Convenience (General Provision)** Omnitrans may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to Omnitrans to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the Omnitrans, the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the Omnitrans directs.
- b. **Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)** Omnitrans in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case, the

RR – Page 26

notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Omnitrans' satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by Contractor of written notice from Omnitrans setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Omnitrans shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Omnitrans from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

- c. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that Omnitrans elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by Omnitrans shall not limit Omnitrans remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.
- d. **Termination for Default (Construction)** If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, Omnitrans may terminate this contract for default. Omnitrans shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, Omnitrans may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to Omnitrans resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Omnitrans in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

- 1. The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Recipient, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
- 2. The contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Omnitrans in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of Omnitrans, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Omnitrans shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

RR – Page 27 Updated: January 19, 2017 If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Omnitrans.

#### RR – 27 SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

#### **Applicability to Contracts**

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

#### Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

#### Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

**Seismic Safety** - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

#### **RR-28**

#### BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

#### **Applicability to Contracts**

All contracts in excess of \$100,000 shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

#### Flow Down

The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

**Disputes** - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Omnitrans. This decision shall be

RR – Page 28

final and conclusive unless within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to Omnitrans Construction Manager. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of Omnitrans Project Manager shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

**Performance During Dispute** - Unless otherwise directed by Omnitrans, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

**Remedies** - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between Omnitrans and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which Omnitrans is located.

**Rights and Remedies** - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by Omnitrans, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

#### RR-29 VETERANS PREFERENCE

<u>Veterans Employment</u>. Contractors working on a capital project funded using FTA assistance shall give a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, to veterans (as defined in section 2108 of title 5) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work required under the contract. This subsection shall not be understood, construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or former employee.

#### END OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

RR – Page 29

#### Attachment C - Pricing Contract MNT18-07 Replacement Bus Windows

The Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC

Item Num	Item Code Description	Unit of Measure	Unit Price
1	21253 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, SR813, SR842, FRONT DESTINATION, 75-1/2" X 12-1/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$290.82
2	216029 GLASS, NF BUS SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, FRONT DESTINATION, 90" X 12-1/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$147.03
3	219262 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, FRONT DESTINATION, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$314.86
4	12484 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, SR813, SR842, DOOR LOWER, 10-3/4" X 20-3/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$39.05
5	12492 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, SR813, SR842, DOOR UPPER, 10-3/4" X 40-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$50.39
6	216335 GLASS, NF SR1337, EXIT DOOR UPPER, 40-1/2" X 10-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$250.41
7	216337 GLASS, NF SR1337, EXIT DOOR LOWER, 20-1/4" X 10-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$158.18
8	216351 GLASS, NF SR1337, ENT. AFT. DOOR UPPER, 22-1/2" X 12-3/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$46.59
9	216353 GLASS, NF SR1337, ENT. AFT. DOOR LOWER, 41-3/8" X 12-1/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$54.42
10	216355 GLASS, NF SR1337, ENT.FORE DOOR UPPER, 22-1/2" X 11-3/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$39.54
11	216357 GLASS, NF SR1337, ENT. FORE DOOR LOWER, 41-3/8" X 11-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$51.86
12	218864 GLASS, NF SR1565, EXIT FORE and AFT. DOOR UPPER and LOWER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$1,022.31
13	218937 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, ENT. AFT. DOOR UPPER and LOWER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$60.59
14	219143 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, ENT. FORE DOOR UPPER and LOWER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$60.20
15	219245 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, ENT. FORE DOOR UPPER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$37.93
16	219251 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, ENT. AFT. DOOR UPPER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$34.90
17	219253 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, ENT. AFT. LOWER DOOR, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$51.82
18	219256 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, EXIT DOOR UPPER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	no bid
19	219258 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, EXIT DOOR LOWER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$158.18
20	219267 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, EXIT FORE and AFT. DOOR UPPER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$552.38
21	219270 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, EXIT FORE and AFT. DOOR LOWER, SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$399.68
22	22335 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, DRIVERS SLIDER WINDOW, 18-1/4" X 36-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$70.77
23	31757 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, DRIVERS AFT. SLIDER WINDOW, 17-1/8" X 34-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$121.02
24	31765 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, DRIVERS FORE SLIDER WINDOW, 17-1/8" X 34-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$121.02
25	216031 GLASS, NF SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, DRIVERS FORE SLIDER WINDOW, 15" X 19-5/8 X 16-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$163.17
26	216033 GLASS, NF SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, DRIVERS AFT. SLIDER WINDOW, 15" X 35-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$133.82
27	219017 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, DRIVERS FIXED GLASS, 47-1/4"X X43-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$4,975.20
28	219263 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, DRIVERS SASH GLASS, 17-7/8" X 35-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$633.64
29	11189 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, EMERGENCY GLASS, 49" X 26", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$172.89
30	11197 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, NON EMERGENCY GLASS, 51-1/4" X 27-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$185.44
31	11205 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, REAR SLIDER, 24" X 31-1/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$159.77
32	12914 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, UPPER MIDDLE S/S WINDOW SASH GLASS, 23" X 8-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$115.25
33	19141 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, SASH GLASS, 23" X 8-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$127.07
34	31773 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, NON EMERGENCY GLASS, 51" X 40", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$195.75
35	31781 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, EMERGENCY GLASS, 49" X 38", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$188.75
36	31807 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, CURB SIDE DESTINATION SIGN UPPER GLASS, 51-1/8" X 2-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$49.67

#### Attachment C - Pricing Contract MNT18-07 Replacement Bus Windows

The Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC

Item Num	Item Code Description	Unit of Measure	Unit Price
37	31815 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, CURB SIDE DESTINATION SIGN LOWER GLASS, 51-1/8" X 11-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$135.97
38	48298 GLASS, NF SR585, SR674, SR709, CURB SIDE UPPER DESTINATION SIGN, 51-1/8" X 11-3/4", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$129.56
39	216037 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, NON EMERGENCY, 50" X 39", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$445.91
40	216039 GLASS, NF SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, NON EMERGENCY, 50-3/8" X 39-3/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$350.40
41	216041 GLASS, NF SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, CURB SIDE DESTINATION SIGN UPPER, 50-1/2" X 11-5/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$49.24
42	216043 GLASS, NF SR1337, SR1563, SR1564, CURB SIDE DESTINATION SIGN LOWER, 50-1/2" X 26-3/8", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$308.38
43	217019 GLASS, NF SR1563, SR1564, SIDE EMERGENCY, 47-1/2" X 37", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$428.94
44	217783 GLASS, NF SR813, SR842, NON EMERGENCY GLASS, 50-1/2" X 32-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$375.82
45	218608 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1565, STREETSIDE WINDSHIELD 51-5/8" X 41-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$247.77
46	218610 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1565, CURBSIDE WINDSHIELD, 51-5/8" X 41-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$247.77
47	220157 GLASS, NF SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, STREETSIDE WINDSHIELD, 51-5/8" X 41-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$246.92
48	220160 GLASS, NF SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, CURBSIDE WINDSHIELD, 51-5/8" X 41-1/2", SOLID TRANSPARENT MATERIAL	EA	\$246.92
49	218999 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, SIDE NON EMERGENCY FLUSH, 62.28" x 35.12", 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$1,986.14
50	219001 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, SIDE EMERGENCY FLUSH, 48-1/8" X 43-1/2", 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$2,115.68
51	219004 GLASS, FIXED NON EMERGENCY C/S TRANSITION, 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$3,134.52
52	219006 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, SIDE EMERGENCY FLUSH, 66-3/4" X 43-1/2", 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$2,943.70
53	219015 GLASS, NF SR1565, SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, SIDE NON EMERGENCY FLUSH, 48-1/8" X 43-1/2", 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$2,551.43
54	219021 GLASS, FIXED NON EMERGENCY S/S TRANSITION, 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$3,154.62
55	219030 GLASS, NF SR1677, SR1820, SR1965, SR2029, SIDE DESTINATION SIGN LOWER GLASS, 66-3/4" X 28-1/2", 6mm 70% BLUE SPRUCE	EA	\$3,767.53
56	221694 GLASS, NF SR1565, CURB SIDE and STREET SIDE DESTINATION SIGN UPPER, 50-1/2" X 11-5/8", UPPER GLASS CLEAR, BOTT 70% BLUE	EA	\$725.88